
 

 

Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454  

e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 

 

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 

 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 16 September 2014 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel: 
 
Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), G R Aley, S M Booth, 
C J T H Brewis, R Clark, R Grocock, M Howard, J L King, 
R Perkins, R M Rudkin, M D Seymour, E J Sneath, A C Tennant, 
D J Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman) and S Wilkinson 
 
Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may 
be appointed only from members who are not on the Cabinet.  
Substitutions apply for individual meetings only.  
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
 
 
Member Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   8 September 2014 
 



A G E N D A 
 
1.  Apologies for absence.  

 
 

2.  Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following 
meetings: 
 

 

a)   Performance Monitoring Panel - 24 June 2014 (copy enclosed) (Pages 
1 - 10) 

 
b)   Special Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy 

Development Panel - 29 July 2014 (copy enclosed) 
(Pages 
11 - 18) 

 
c)   Special Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy 

Development Panel - 19 August 2014 (copy enclosed) 
(Pages 
19 - 24) 

 
3.  Declarations of Interest. - (Members are no longer required to declare 

personal of prejudicial interests but are to declare any new Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests that are not currently included in their Register of 
Interests. 
 
Members are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not to 
participate in the whole of an agenda item to which they have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  In the interests of transparency, 
members may also wish to declare any other interests that they have, in 
relation to an agenda item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed 
within the Code of Conduct.)    
 

 

4.  Questions asked under Council Procedure Rule 10.3.  
 

 

5.  Tracking of Recommendations - To consider responses of the Cabinet 
to reports of the Panel. 
 

 

6.  Items referred from the Policy Development Panel.  
 

 

7.  Key Decision Plan - To note the current Key Decision Plan (Plan dated 
20 August 2014 enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
25 - 28) 

8.  Quarter 1 Cabinet Performance Report - To provide an update of 
delivery against our 2011-15 Corporate Plan for the Period 1 April 2014 
to 30 June 2014 (report of the Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, 
Performance and Business Development and the Executive Director 
Commissioning and Governance enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
29 - 44) 

9.  Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme - To set out the Work 
Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel, and 
 

• To receive an update on the Annual Inspection of Planning Files; 

• To give consideration to questions to be asked of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner, prior to his attendance at a future meeting of 
the Performance Monitoring Panel 

 

(Pages 
45 - 52) 



 (report of the Democratic Services and Legal Manager enclosed). 
 

10.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent -  
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 

circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. 

 

 

11.  Exclusion of the Press and Public - To consider resolving that, under 
section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

 

12.  Special Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development 
Panel - 29 July 2014 (exempt minute enclosed) 

(Pages 
53 - 60) 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 2 - 

 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in the 
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 24 June 2014 
at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
B Alcock (Chairman) 

D J Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

C J T H Brewis 
R Grocock 
M Howard 
 

J L King 
R Perkins 
M D Seymour 
 

E J Sneath 
 

  
 
In Attendance:  The Principal Member Services Officer, Member Services Support 
Officer, Community Development Team Leader, Environmental Services Manager, 
General Manager (CSU) and Service Desk Team Leader (CPBS) 
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors G R Aley, 
S M Booth, R Clark, R M Rudkin and S Wilkinson  
 
 

3. MINUTES  

 
The minutes from the following meetings of the Performance Monitoring Panel were 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record: 
 
(a)  8 April 2014 – Performance Monitoring Panel; and 
 
(b)  14 May 2014 – Special meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  

 
There were none. 
 

5. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10.3.  

 
There were none. 
 

6. TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
There were none. 
 

7. ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL.  

 
There were none.  
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2.a)



- 3 - 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

24 June 2014 

 

 

 

8. KEY DECISION PLAN  

 
Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 4 June 2014 and 
members asked for further information and updates to be provided on the following 
two items:  
 

• Spalding Gypsy and Traveller Site – To award the works contract (subject to 
Planning Application Approval); and 

 

• Setting up of South Holland Building Consultancy – To seek authorisation to 
putting in place an arms length company limited by shares, to enable it to 
operate in the open market to deliver construction related provisions 
(members requested that the South Holland Building Consultancy be reviewed 
by the Performance Monitoring Panel prior to any decision being taken): 

 
9. POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR LINCOLNSHIRE  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – Commissioning on 
the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire.  The report was to provide 
information to the Panel in order that it may discuss the context of an invitation to the 
Police and Crime Commissioner to a future meeting and the areas for consideration.   
 
Last year at a meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel held on 26 March 2013 
members requested that the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire attend 
a future meeting of the Panel to answer members questions.  Alongside this there 
was to be a discussion on an update that was to be received on community safety, 
provided by the Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society on a six monthly basis.   
 
The update from the Portfolio Holder took place on 8 April 2014, unfortunately The 
Police and Crime Commissioner was unable to attend on that occasion.   
 
The Panel, at that meeting, considered areas that they wished to discuss, which were 
a mixture of both operational and strategic issues. The issues were as follows: 
 

• What was the role of police officers now? 
 

• If the number of officers were the same, why were they not visible? 
 

• What assistance did the Police require from the Authority and what was 
required from them? 

 

• What were the proposals to address issues in rural areas? 
 

• What was the role of Police Community Support Officers? 
 

• Communication 
 

• Reported crime 

Page 2



- 4 - 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

24 June 2014 

 

 

 

 
Information had recently been received from the office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Lincolnshire, in the communication the following points were made: 

• The Police and Crime Panel have a statutory role to scrutinise the actions 
and decisions of the Police and Crime Commissioner and wanted to advise 
the panel of this in the same way that this had been clarified with 
Lincolnshire County Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee. 

• The remit of the Commissioner’s role is separate to operational policing 
which is the preserve of the Chief Constable 

• The Commissioner was keen to approach the meeting from a partnership 
perspective, in particular with regard to community safety where both he 
and local authorities shared statutory responsibilities.  Given anticipated 
future budget settlements, the focus had to be on delivering through 
partnership where there were shared outcomes. 

• If members had specific questions, it would be helpful to have those in 
advance. The Commissioner would also have questions for members in 
respect of their community safety activity, so would welcome an overview 
of this in advance of any meeting. 

 
In light of the information provided above, the attendance of the Commissioner at a 
meeting of the Panel had been postponed.  The Panel agreed that they would 
consider the areas that they would like to discuss with the Commissioner and also 
have prepared information on Community Safety activity as requested.   
 
Members felt that it was very important that the Authority engaged with the Police 
and Crime Commissioner as a key stakeholder.  The Authority has a statutory duty 
for community safety under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, 'Section 17' 
responsibilities - ‘Without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be 
the duty of each authority to which this section applies to exercise its various 
functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and 
the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area.’ 

 
Based on the information that they had received, members made the following points: 
 

• The Performance Monitoring Panel should look at how the roles of the Panel 
and the Police and Crime Commissioner link together; 

 

• Was the funding for Police Community Support Officers (PCSO's) secure? 
 

• More was being expected, when there was less funding – what are the 
priorities? 

 

• Were South Holland meeting its 'Section 17' responsibilities? 
 
 

Page 3



- 5 - 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

24 June 2014 

 

 

 

• What was crime, what was anti social behaviour – could a clear definition be 
provided? 

 

• Was crime really going down, or was this just the reporting of crime? 
 

• Could an update on the Police and Crime Commissioners priorities, as stated in 
section 3.15 of the report, be given in six months time to the Panel? 

 

• What was the real purpose of the "extra layer" of policing? 
 
The Community Development Team Leader addressed a number of issues 
highlighted above: 
 

• The Community Development Team Leader was confident that South Holland 
was meeting its 'Section 17' responsibilities.  A multi-agency approach had 
been taken to crime and anti-social behaviour, focussing on the victim.  Locally 
Inspector Tyner had undertaken community impact assessments on reported 
incidents – reporting was widely being encouraged.   

 
Members of the Panel agreed that many of the issues raised could be directly 
addressed by the Police and Crime Commissioner and requested that he be invited 
to the November meeting of the Panel.  It was agreed that Councillor Przyszlak as 
South Holland's representative of the Police and Crime Panel also be invited and 
asked if he had anything which he wished to contribute.   
 
AGREED: 

 

(a) That the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire be invited to the 
 November meeting of the Panel – the Portfolio Holder for Localism  and Big 
 Society and the Community Development Team Leader also to be 
 attendance; and 
 
(b) That Councillor Przyszlak as South Holland's representative on the  Police and 
 Crime Commissioner Panel be asked to attend the November Panel 
 meeting should he feel there was any contribution he  could make.   
 
(Emily Holmes, Community Development Team Leader left the meeting at 7.05p.m. 
after consideration of the above item).  
 

10. CIC TASK GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS UPDATE  

 
A report of the Action Plan of the Community Interest Company Task Group was 
provided to members of the Panel at its meeting on 28 May 2013.  The Interim 
Business and Transformation Manager was in attendance to give members an 
update on the current situation.   
 
Members reviewed the action plan and discussed various points which they had 
concerns over not being actioned or addressed.  They stressed the point that Cabinet 

Page 4



- 6 - 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

24 June 2014 

 

 

 

had adopted those recommendations and if they were not being followed Cabinet 
should be advised accordingly.   
 
The Interim Business and Transformation Manager was asked to ensure that the 
actions were being implemented and to liaise with CMT with regard to actions being 
allocated to relevant officers.  
 
AGREED: 

 
(a) That the Interim Business and Transformation Manager was asked to 
 ensure that the actions were being implemented and to liaise with CMT with 
 regard to actions being allocated to relevant officers; and 
 
(b) That if actions were not being implemented then Cabinet must be advised 
 accordingly.  
 

11. CSU UPDATE  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the CSU General Manager to update the 
Performance Monitoring Panel on progress made at the Construction Services Unit 
(CSU).   
 
An overview was provided on the progress made with regard to the purchasing of an 
asset management software package.   
 
A capital bid had been submitted for an integrated asset management system.  A 
number of systems had been investigated and a sum of £105,000 had been 
requested to purchase the new system.  The Property Services Team had looked at 
a number of systems available and decided on the requirements of the new system.  
The Team were in the early stages of the tendering process and it was anticipated 
that a system should be appointed in November 2014.   
 
Members were advised that the system to be implemented was to assist the 
management of the authority's property within the CSU and to advise the Technical 
Team accordingly what the customers' issue was so it would be actioned 
appropriately.  The system would carry details of each individual property and a full 
history of jobs back to 2009.   
 
Members queried whether the system would be used by the Customer Services 
Centre and their operatives to assist with customer calls.  The CSU General Manager 
advised that call centre operatives were more 'generic' operatives and not specialist, 
so therefore it would add very little value allowing call centre operatives access to the 
system.  It would also mean purchasing extra licences which would mean incurring 
further costs.   
 
Members made further comments and queries but were advised that those queries 
were not able to be answered until a provider had been chosen.   
 

Page 5



- 7 - 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

24 June 2014 

 

 

 

It was requested that a further update be provided, once a system had been chosen, 
to the Performance Monitoring Panel in six months time.   
 
AGREED: 

 
That a further update on the asset management software package be provided to the 
27 January 2015 meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel. 
 
(Darren Spillett, CSU General Manager left the meeting at 8.02p.m. after 
consideration of the above item).  
 

12. UPDATE ON ICT ISSUES  

 
Members considered the report of the ICT and Customer Services Manager (ICT 
Client) on an update of the ICT issues raised at the meeting of the Performance 
Monitoring Panel held on 3 December 2013.   
 
ICT/Compass Point Business Solutions was asked to attend meetings of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel on a number of occasions, the last time 3 December 
2013, to report back on a number of ICT issues being experienced by members.  At 
the meeting a number of issues were tabled which culminated in a number of 
considerations which included: 
 

• Current ICT problems; and 
 

• Future ICT rollout (from 2015).  
 
Compass Point Business Solutions were asked to attend to identify potential 
solutions to existing issues being experienced by members and the Remote Access 
Point (Rap) was offered to a number of members of the Performance Monitoring 
Panel.  Since the offer was made 16 members had requested the solution, which had 
since been deployed.   
 
The overall feedback of the RAP had been very positive, the solution was very stable 
and offered significant improvements on previous methods used.   
 
A software replacement for the RAP was currently being developed and tested, it 
would further increase the usage and flexibility of the product allowing connectivity to 
internal resources regardless of location.   
 
An ICT Working Group for members ICT refresh 2015 had been set-up with early 
discussions around members IT provision and their general requirements.  The 
Working Group had been designing a members' survey which would ask for feedback 
and determine future needs.  The results gathered from the survey would enable 
CPBS to design and deploy a final solution, whilst giving members an opportunity to 
provide constructive feedback in the deign of future services.   
 
Members raised the following questions and concerns: 

Page 6



- 8 - 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

24 June 2014 

 

 

 

 

• When would the results of the survey be available? 
 

• Were there any current outstanding issues on Members' IT? 
 

• Members IT calls were on occasion being answered by the CPBS helpdesk 
based in Louth, this was not very helpful as issues were only able to be 
resolved by helpdesk operatives in Spalding.  Was there a reason that was 
happening and could it be rectified? 

 

• Could clarification be sought on the possibility of Members using their own 
personal IT provisions to access internal systems? 

 
Mark Starkey (Service Desk Team Leader (CPBS)) was in attendance and 
responded to members as follows: 
 

• The results of the survey were anticipated to be available from the end of July 
2014; 

 

• There were no current outstanding members' IT issues at the time of the 
meeting; 

 

• There were currently ICT Service Desk staffing issues within Spalding, the 
desk was currently understaffed therefore meaning calls were being diverted 
to the Manby desk.  The issue was hoped to be shortly resolved by bolstering 
staff numbers; and 

 

• It was agreed that the Director of ICT would be approached to discuss the 
viability of the option of members using their own IT provisions, once clarified 
members would be notified.   

 
The Panel were very keen that a robust and efficient system be put in place so that 
'going paperless' was a real option for all members.  It was requested that a further 
update be provided to the Panel in six months time.  
 
AGREED: 

 

That a further update on Members' ICT provision be provided to the Policy 
Development Panel at its meeting on 27 January 2014.   
 
(Mark Starkey, (Service Desk Team Leader (CPBS)) left the meeting at 8.20p.m. 
after consideration of the above item).  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



- 9 - 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

24 June 2014 

 

 

 

 
13. QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE REPORT  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Leader of the Council and Portfolio 
Holder for Communications, Business Development and Performance and the Chief 
Executive of Breckland and South Holland Councils.   
 
Following the creation of the bespoke data collection system over a period of months, 
introduction in full was available to relevant officers in December 2013, this then 
allowed the agreed new templates to be populated.   
 
Attached at Appendix 1 to the report was the Cabinet Performance Report Quarter 4 
2013/14.  It covered delivery against corporate priorities and in addition corporate 
health indicators of interest to the public.   
 
Members were requested to consider the Cabinet Performance Report Quarter 4 
2013/14 and make any recommendations that they deemed appropriate.   
 
Concerns were raised over the lack of detail within the report, it was felt that due to 
certain figures not being included it was difficult to interpret the information and get a 
realistic view of what was being noted.  The Interim Business and Transformation 
Manager advised that the performance report was still a 'work in progress' and any 
comments the Panel made would be taken on board.   
 
Members were advised that Breckland Council had a new performance system 
recently put in placed, it was hoped that this would soon be able to be shared with 
South Holland as part of its joint working arrangement.   
 
It was noted by members of the Panel who were also members of the Leisure Task 
Group that information stated on page 12 of the appendix – Overall participation in 
cultural activity, was information that the Task Group would find very useful.   
 
AGREED: 

 
That the Cabinet Performance Report Quarter 4 2013/2014 lacked sufficient detail to 
be useful to the Panel and for this to be addressed prior to further updates being 
presented to the Panel.   
 
(Dale Robinson, The Interim Business and Transformation Manager left the meeting 
at 8.35p.m. after consideration of the above item).   
 

14. PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – Democratic Services 
which set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel.  The Work 
Programme consisted of two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the 
future Panel meetings along with proposed items for consideration and the second 
setting out the Task Groups that had been identified by the Panel.   

Page 8



- 10 - 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

24 June 2014 

 

 

 

 
The Principal Member Services Officer invited the Panel to consider the following 
issues: 
 

• Annual inspection of planning files – did members still wish for the review to 
take place? (detailed within the work programme for 16 September 2014); 

 

• To extend an invitation to Neil Rhodes, Chief Constable, Lincolnshire Police to 
the 27 January 2014 meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel. Taking 
into consideration that the Police and Crime Commissioner was to now be 
invited to the 25 November 2014 meeting of the Panel, which members had 
agreed would be a one item agenda; and 

 

• Biennial review of implemented planning decisions – did members still wish for 
the review to take place? (detailed within the work programme 7 April 2015).  

 
Annual inspection of planning files 
 
The Chairman reported to the Panel that the Chief Executive had expressed her 
opinion that the annual inspection of the planning files was no longer a necessity.  
Members agreed that they felt that this was a very important piece of work.  It was 
noted that the Chief Executive wished to address both the Policy Development 
and Performance Monitoring Panels regarding their work programmes, and 
members agreed that this would be an appropriate time to discuss the matter.   
 
Invitation to Neil Rhodes, Chief Constable, Lincolnshire Police to the 27 January 
2014 meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel. 
 
Members agreed that they still wished to pose questions to Neil Rhodes, Chief 
Constable on issues of crime and disorder and agreed that it be appropriate to 
move the invitation to the 27 January 2015 meeting of the Panel.  
 
Biennial review of implemented planning decisions 
 
Members agreed that as with the Annual inspection of planning files this was an 
important piece of work.  It was noted that the Chief Executive had expressed an 
opinion that the tour was no longer a necessary.  It was agreed that this was also 
to be discussed along side the Annual Inspection of Planning files when the Chief 
Executive addressed the Panel regarding work programmes.   
 
The Chairman noted to members that the last time the tour had taken place very 
few members attended and very few sites had been suggested – Should 
members wish for this to go ahead in the future members would need to put 
forward suggestions of sites to be visited.  It was agreed that this would be 
discussed at the 27 January 2015 meeting of the Panel.   
 
 
 

Page 9



- 11 - 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

24 June 2014 

 

 

 

AGREED: 

 
(a) That the importance of Annual Inspection of Planning Files and Biennial 

review of implemented planning decisions be discussed with the Chief 
Executive when she addressed the Panel's on their work programmes; 

 
(b) That the Biennial review of implemented planning decisions tour be 

discussed at the 27 January 2014 meeting of the Performance Monitoring 
Panel; and 

 
(c) That an invitation be extended to Neil Rhodes, Chief Constable, 
 Lincolnshire Police to the 27 January 2014 meeting of the Performance 
 Monitoring Panel to discuss issues of crime and disorder.   

 
15. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  

 
There were none.  
 
(The meeting ended at 8.45 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 

Page 10



- 1 - 
 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL AND 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory 
Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 29 July 2014 at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
B Alcock (Chairman) 

 

 

G R Aley 
D Ashby 
F Biggadike 
M D Booth 
A Casson 
P E Coupland 

G K Dark 
R Grocock 
A Harrison 
M Howard 
J L King 
R M Rudkin 
 

M D Seymour 
E J Sneath 
D J Wilkinson 
A R Woolf 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors S M Booth, 
R Clark, R Perkins, S Wilkinson and A C Tennant  
 
In Attendance:  The Housing Manager, the Housing Landlord Manager, the 
Democratic Services and Legal Manager, the Member Services Team Leader, the 
Principal Member Services Officer, the Portfolio Holder for Housing Landlord and the 
Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society. 
 
 
 Action By 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   

  

 Consideration was given as to who should preside over the 
special joint meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel and 
Policy Development Panel. 
  
AGREED: 
  
That Councillor B Alcock be elected Chairman for the duration of 
the special joint meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel and 
Policy Development Panel. 

CM 

   

2.       CONSTITUTION REVIEW   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Democratic Services 
and Legal Manager, which detailed progress to date on the 
Constitution Review. The purpose of the report was to consult 
with the Panel on the draft proposals which would form the basis 
of a revised constitution.  Once feedback and any suggested 
changes had been received from the Panels, the document would 
be reviewed by an independent legal adviser, after which it would 
be considered by the Cabinet and finally approved by full Council 
in September 2014. 
  
The aims of the review were to update the Constitution in light of 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2.b)



- 2 - 
 

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL - 29 July 2014 

 

 

 

legislative changes; to develop transparency and accountability of 
decision making; to improve formatting; and only where 
appropriate, align with Breckland Council who were conducting 
their review at the same time. 
  
The review had been undertaken by the Constitution Review 
Working Group which comprised of Councillors C N Worth, P S 
Przyszlak and A M Newton, and three Councillors from Breckland 
Council. 
  
The Democratic Services and Legal Manager advised the Panels 
of the following: 
  

•        The Memorandum of Agreement on Shared Management 
between Breckland Council and South Holland District Council 
was currently being reviewed.  It was likely that some changes 
may be required as a result of this, and these would be picked 
up at the same time that the report to approve a revised 
Memorandum of Agreement was brought before Council. 

•        Part 3, Section F of the Constitution referred to the Officer 
Delegations. No changes to this section had currently been 
made as a management restructure had very recently taken 
place.  This section would be updated accordingly, in time for 
the report to be presented before Cabinet and full Council. 

•        Work was taking place to develop an officers’ log of 
delegations which would help officers to be clear where they 
had authority to act, and would support any evidence required, 
should a decision be challenged.  This document would sit 
outside the Constitution and be managed by officers. 

•        The Constitution  Review Working Group had taken the 
opportunity to consider the Committee Structure of the 
Council. 

•        Sections 5 onwards (Codes and Protocols; Payments to 
Members; Management Structure; and Glossary of Terms) 
had not been reviewed at this time.  These would be picked up 
individually at a later stage, as it was considered that Parts 1 
to 4 should be the key focus. 

•        Items highlighted in red within the attached Draft Constitution 
showed areas that were different or new.  Section 4B onwards 
detailed the Financial Procedure Rules.  This section was not 
highlighted in red as its presentation was so fundamentally 
different from the current version, an alternative model was 
identified that was felt to be more robust and easy to use than 
the previous version.  To support members understanding of 
the changes proposed within this section, a summary had 
been provided of the financial limits being proposed. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



- 3 - 
 

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL - 29 July 2014 

 

 

 

Members considered the information and the following points 
were raised: 
  

•        Page 13 – Citizens’ Rights – were these rights promoted? 

o       These rights were promoted in various ways – on the 

Council’s website, through the Constitution, on agendas 
etc. 

  

•        Page 31 – Why had ‘arrangements to promote well being’ 
been removed? 

o       This had been removed as this function was picked up 

in general procedures and powers of committees.  The 
fact that it had been removed from this section did not 
mean that it was not being done, it was implied 
elsewhere. 

  

•        Page 31 (11.2.2) – ‘The Cabinet may establish joint 
arrangements with one or more local authorities to exercise 
functions which are executive functions’. Could the Cabinet do 
this without reference to the Council? 

o       The Cabinet had powers to do this anyway.  The law 

made provision for executive and non-executive bodies 
to set up such arrangements. 

  

•        Page 34 – Example of reference to a specific job role.  How 
would the Constitution be kept up to date with regard to future 
changes in titles etc? 

o       The Monitoring Officer would have authority to ensure 

that the Constitution was updated accordingly.   
  

•        Page 35 (12.4 – Functions of the Section 151 Officer) – 
Nowhere in this section was it mentioned their role to ensure 
that the accounts were completed in time. 

o       This function would be detailed within the Powers of 

Delegation however, this function was a legal 
requirement incumbent on the Authority, and was 
therefore not purely the responsibility of an officer. 

  

•        Page 43 (16.2 – Interpretation) -  What would happen if it was 
felt that the Chairman was wrong in his interpretation of the 
Constitution? 

o       The Chairman would take legal advice, where required, 

prior to a Council meeting.  Any decision made by the 
Chairman would be their decision. 

  

•        Page 49 (Item 8, d and e) – Reference was made to Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



- 4 - 
 

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL - 29 July 2014 

 

 

 

Functions/Terms of Reference in respect of the Merged 
Service Organisation, but not to companies.  Companies were 
not referred to. 

o       The Democratic Services and Legal Manager advised 

that this point would be taken back to the Working 
Group to consider if the scope needed to be extended 
to include companies. 

  

•        When compiling the draft amended Constitution, had the 
Constitutions of any similar authorities, other than Breckland 
Council’s been looked at? 

o       A model Constitution had been used to put together the 

draft constitution (in April 2013, the Association of 
Council Secretaries and Solicitors (Acses) in 
conjunction with Dickinson Dees (who ran a software 
platform produced by a software provider, Exari), 
produced a new model Constitution).  Breckland 
Council’s Constitution had been referenced where 
appropriate.  

  

• Page 54 (Final paragraph under Chairman’s Panel).  Although 
the attendance of ward members at the Chairman’s Panel was 
addressed under the next heading, no reference was made 
under the final paragraph under Chairman’s Panel to the fact 
that ward members may attend.   

o       This section had been taken directly from the current 

Constitution however, it was agreed that the Working 
Group would consider how to incorporate attendance 
by ward members at Chairman’s Panel under the final 
paragraph of this section.  

  

•        There was inconsistency in how the Panels were referred to, 
sometimes as Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy 
Development Panel, sometimes as Overview and Scrutiny 
Panels.  Reference had to be consistent. 

o       The model Constitution referred to Overview and 

Scrutiny Panels and it was felt that this was a clearer 
reference to Scrutiny than Performance Monitoring 
Panel and Policy Development Panel which was the 
name given to the Panels at South Holland District 
Council. 

  

•        Page 73 (item vii) – Reference to (h) was incorrect, it should 
refer to (viii). 

  

•        Page 92 – Standing Order No 31 (Proceedings to be 
confidential) – Members queried the period that proceedings 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



- 5 - 
 

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL - 29 July 2014 

 

 

 

should be confidential. 

o       It was clarified that only draft documents were classed 

as confidential, prior to them being published.  This 
would be clarified by inserting ‘draft’ at the start of this 
paragraph.  

  

•        Page 99 – New paragraph 1 (relationship between 
prospective candidates and members/specified officers).  How 
would a prospective candidate know if this applied? 

o       Clarification would be provided on the application form. 

  

•        Page 187 and 188 – Summary of Limits and Controls.  There 
was some concern from members over the proposed level of 
financial limits, which would provide freedom of financial 
operation to certain members, officers and Cabinet members.   

o       The Panel was advised that the proposed figures were 

standard for other authorities across the country, and 
that Breckland Council’s figures had been used.  It was 
felt that using the same limits over the two authorities 
would make it easier for shared managers to operate as 
they were currently working with two different sets of 
figures. 

•        Members responded that although figures may be similar 
cross-country, they may not be suitable for all authorities, and 
although bringing the figures in line with Breckland Council’s 
would assist shared managers, it could put more risk on South 
Holland as a smaller authority.  Additionally, they questioned 
whether there was any evidence that Cabinet members 
needed the increased amounts, and asked if there were 
examples where Cabinet members had been prevented from 
doing something because of the current figures.  Overall, the 
Panel agreed that the Working Group should reconsider the 
increased limits. 

  

•        P188 (Debt Recovery Policy) – Members queried why, under 
Proposed Limit or Control, it was stated that write off 
procedures be aligned to East Lindsey District Council to 
assist CPBS?   

o       Members were advised that this was stated in order 

that CPBS could align some regulations and 
procedures when chasing debtors.   

•        Members commented that with regard to the Debt Recovery 
Policy, information was not coming before members.  The 
Cabinet should ensure that members continued to receive this 
information  

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



- 6 - 
 

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL - 29 July 2014 

 

 

 

AGREED: 
  
a)     That the comments of the joint Panel be noted; and 
  
b)     That the following issues be taken back to the Constitution 

Review Working Group for consideration: 
  

(i)                 Page 49 (Section 3, Delegations – Part D, Delegations 
to Committees, Item 8, d and e) – Consider whether 
reference should be made here to companies, as well 
as the Merged Service Organisation.  

  
(ii)               Page 54 (Final paragraph under Chairman’s Panel). 

Consider incorporating attendance by ward members at 
Chairman’s Panel under the final paragraph of the 
Chairman’s Panel section. 

  
(iii)             That reference to the name of Overview and Scrutiny 

Panels should be consistent throughout the whole 
Constitution. 

  
(iv)              Page 73 (item vii) – Reference to (h) should be 

changed and replaced with reference to (viii). 
  

(v)                Page 92 – Standing Order No 31 (Proceedings to be 
confidential) – ‘Draft’ to be inserted at the start of this 
paragraph to clarify when documents were classed as 
confidential.   

  
(vi)              Pages 187 – 188 (Summary of Limits and Controls) – 

that the increased limits be reconsidered, taking into 
accounts issues raised by the Panel. 

  
(vii)            Page 188 (Debt Recovery Policy) – That this 

information should continue to be considered by the 
Cabinet. 

 

 

 

VT & RO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

3.       EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   

  

 Members gave consideration to excluding the press and public 
from the meeting to discuss Business Development concerning 
Compass Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd, as 
consideration would be given to information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information). 
 
  

 

Page 16



- 7 - 
 

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL - 29 July 2014 

 

 

 

AGREED: 
  
That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for further discussion on 
Business Development concerning Compass Point Business 
Services (East Coast) Ltd, on the grounds that it would involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 
(3) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

   

4.      COMPASS POINT BUSINESS SERVICES (EAST COAST) LTD -   
         BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Housing Manager 
which considered business development in relation to Compass 
Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd. 
  
A report was presented to members which provided further 
information on proposed business development, and a full 
discussion around the issues was held. 

 

 
(The meeting ended at 8.40 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



- 8 - 
 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL AND 

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 19 August 2014 at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
A Harrison (Chairman) 

  
 

 

B Alcock 
G R Aley 
D Ashby 
F Biggadike 
A Casson 
 

P E Coupland 
G K Dark 
R Grocock 
M Howard 
J L King 
 

R Perkins 
R M Rudkin 
E J Sneath 
 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors M D Booth, 
S M Booth, C J T H Brewis, R Clark, M D Seymour, S-A Slade, D J Wilkinson and 
A R Woolf  
 
In Attendance: Chief Executive, Executive Director (Place),Community Development 
Manager, Public Protection Manager, Principal Member Services Officer and Member 
Services Support Officer. 
 
 
 
 Action By 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   

  

 Consideration was given as to who should preside over the 
special joint meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel and 
Policy Development Panel. 
 
DECISION: 

 
That Councillor A Harrison be elected Chairman for the duration 
of special joint meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel and 
Policy Development Panel.    

 

   

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS   

  

 There were none.    

   

3. INTERIM REPORT OF THE LEISURE TASK GROUP   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Leisure Task Group 
to present the interim report.   
 
The Council at its meeting on 11 April 2012 received a  
presentation from the Assistant Director for Finance regarding the 
future options for the Castle Sports Complex. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 2.c)



- 9 - 
 

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL - 19 August 2014 

 

 

 

 
Members discussed the possibilities and agreed that no further 
work be undertaken on the project at present and that the 
financial position should be reviewed in 2 years time.   
 
On 30 April 2013 the Policy Development Panel and Performance  
Monitoring Panel agreed to undertake a review of Leisure and  
formed a Joint Task Group.  The Task Group was made up of 8  
Councillors from both Panels; membership of the Task Group was  
as follows: 
 

• Councillor G Aley (Chairman) 

• Councillor D Ashby 

• Councillor G K Dark 

• Councillor R Perkins (Vice-Chairman) 

• Councillor S Slade 

• Councillor E J Sneath 

• Councillor S Wilkinson; and 

• Councillor A R Woolf (later replaced with Councillor 
A Casson).   

 
Terms of Reference for the Task Group were agreed at its first 
meeting on 21 January 2014 and were as follows: 
 

1. Establish what leisure provision the District Council 
presently provides, examining costs, resident satisfaction 
and competitiveness in order to identify ways of increasing 
income or reducing expenditure; 

 
2. To understand what the District Council wishes to provide 

and what the public and major employers need; and 
 
3. To examine the options for future provision either to be 

supplied by the Council, the private sector or shared 
management. 

 
It was agreed that the Leisure Task Group would provide an  
interim report to the Panels and Cabinet during the autumn of 
2014, with the anticipation of a final report in February 2015.    
 
The Chairman of the Task Group, Councillor G Aley discussed 
the report with the Panels and highlighted certain areas of work 
undertaken by the Task Group.  Phil Adams (Public Protection 
Manager (Task Group Lead Officer)) and Riana Rudland  
(Community Development and Health Manager), were also in  
attendance to help support the Task Group. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



- 10 - 
 

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL - 19 August 2014 

 

 

 

Members of the Panel raised the following questions and points 
and the Chairman of the Task Group with the assistance of Phil  
Adams and Riana Rudland responded to members accordingly: 
 

• How did the costings provided to the Task Group, which 
were established in 2011, stand up in todays costs? 

 
- The figures provided in 2011 were still very relevant 

compared to today's costs, any final costings made 
on future leisure provision would be calculated 
based on the final design.  

 

• Were the buildings structurally sound?  Had they been 
assessed to ascertain that? 

 
- The buildings were structurally sound and they had 

been assessed by surveyors to determine that.  
However the buildings were not considered energy 
efficient nor versatile enough for today's demands.  

 

• Did the Task Group receive information on how other 
facilities provided their funding? 

 
- Each facility visited provided information on how 

they funded their new build/refurbishments of 
facilities.  Information gathered highlighted to the 
Task Group that there were many different styles of 
funding streams available.   

 

• Would local businesses be consulted as a part of the 
proposed consultation? 

 
- Members of the Task Group were scheduled to 

meet with the company who would be administering 
the consultation and would outline to the company 
who they wanted to be consulted.  The company 
that was being used was a leisure industry leader 
and had vast experience on getting the most out of 
consultations.  

 

• Could figures be included on participation and value for 
money for Spalding’s facilities compared with other District 
Councils? 

 
- Phil and Riana advised that this could be included 

within the report which would then go to a future 
meeting of Cabinet.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



- 11 - 
 

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL - 19 August 2014 

 

 

 

 
Members of the Task Group advised the Panels that it was 
noted during the visits there was a great support for 
improvement of leisure from senior management and 
executive members from each authority.   
 
The Chief Executive advised that if members felt leisure and 
new leisure provision was a top priority for the authority, then 
it needed to become a priority within the corporate plan.  
Members of the Panel agreed that new leisure was a top 
priority and requested that reference to the corporate plan be 
included within the interim report.   
 

AGREED: 

 
That the interim report of the Leisure Task Group be 
recommended to Cabinet subject to: 
 
(a) The inclusion in the interim report of participation and value for 

money figures for Spalding’s facilities compared with other 
District Councils; and  

 
(b) Reference being made in the interim report to the inclusion of 

new leisure facilities in South Holland becoming a priority in 
the Corporate Plan. 

 
(Phil Adams (Public Protection Manager (Task Group Lead 
Officer)) and Riana Rudland (Community Development and 
Health Manager) left the meeting at 7.03p.m after consideration of 
the above item).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PA  

 

 

 

 

PA  

   

4. WORK PROGRAMMES   

  

 The Chief Executive was in attendance to discuss with the 
Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel 
their individual work programmes.   
 
The Chief Executive had previously discussed with the Chairman 
of the Panels their work programmes and how scrutiny could 
make an improvement and collectively use their energies to 
improve the authority, by assisting decision makers. 
 
It was suggested that the Panels focus should be on corporate 
planning and what corporately are the authority's objectives and 
ambitions. A draft of the corporate plan would be available around 
the end of 2014 and it was suggested that items around place, 
business support, people and innovation should be included.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



- 12 - 
 

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL - 19 August 2014 

 

 

 

Corporate Planning would be a large project for members and 
could be considered at a joint meeting.  
 
The Chairman of the meeting advised that the panels had 
previously been involved in budget planning, however the 
involvement was after the budget had been set for the next 
financial year, so the panels had very little impact on any 
decisions.  The Chairman of the Performance Monitoring Panel 
stated that there was the need to ensure participation from 
members and that any corporate planning/budget meeting would 
need to be easily understood to encourage participation.   
 
Julie Kennealy (Executive Director (Place)) advised the Panels 
that as part of their involvement with corporate planning scrutiny 
would be able to provide comments prior to it being presented to 
Cabinet.  Two meetings could be planned one to consider what 
members wanted to be included within the corporate plan and 
then one to consider the requests against what could be achieved 
within the available budgets.  The Chief Executive ensured that 
the events would be presented in plain English and work would be 
done to inspire members to attend and give full participation.   
 
Concerns were raised by members regarding the partnership and 
joint management structure arrangement with Breckland Council.  
The Chief Executive advised that the current partnership was 
strong and had full support from both South Holland and 
Breckland.  The arrangement was supported by a robust and well 
formed plan, which would demonstrate to any new administration 
that came in to place after May 2015 elections that the structure 
was working very effectively and greatly benefitted both 
authorities.   
 
The Chief Executive referenced the Policy Development Panel 
and the Performance Monitoring Panel work programmes.  It was 
suggested that the Policy Development Panel look at the 
environmental services depot and what options they had 
available.  It was suggested that the Performance Monitoring 
Panel reconsider the need to inspect the planning files due to 
current constraints on the Planning Service.  The Chairman of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel noted the Chief Executives 
suggestion and indicated that he would be suggesting to the 
Panel that the inspection still go ahead but without the need for 
officer support.  If this was not possible then it would be 
postponed for twelve months to allow the current constraints on 
the planning service to be rectified.    
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



- 13 - 
 

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL - 19 August 2014 

 

 

 

The Chairmen of the Policy Development Panel and Performance 
Monitoring Panel agreed to discuss at their individual forthcoming 
meetings the suggestions put forward by the Chief Executive 
regarding the work programmes.   
 
AGREED: 

 

(a) That two special joint meetings of the Panels be arranged to 
discuss corporate planning and budgets; and  

 
(b) That Policy Development Panel and Performance Monitoring 

Panel agreed to discuss items for their work programmes, as 
suggested by the Chief Executive, at their individual 
forthcoming meetings.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AG 

JK 

LE 

 

AG 

JK 

LE 

   

5. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 

URGENT  

 

  

 There were none.    

   

(The meeting ended at 7.50 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 1 

 KEY DECISION PLAN 
 
 

 Issued –  20/08/2014 
 

 

 
Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the 

decision is likely to be made, to:   
Amanda Taylor, Member Services Officer, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE  

Telephone: 01775 764837 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: member.services@sholland.gov.uk. 
 

The Key Decision Plan shows all key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months 
 
The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision 
is expected to be made.  Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget 
and the Policy Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies). 
 
The definition of a “key decision” is: 
“A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more Wards of the Council 
and /or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any single financial year 
above the threshold of £71,200 in respect of revenue expenditure and £175,600 in respect of capital expenditure.”  
 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION 
AND WHO WILL MAKE 

DECISION 

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 7.

mailto:member.services@sholland.gov.uk


 2 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION 
AND WHO WILL MAKE 

DECISION 

Councillor M 
G Chandler 
mchandler@s
holland.gov.uk 
 
South Holland 
Empty Homes 
Strategy 2014 
- 2016 

To adopt the Strategy. CMT, Strategy Board, 
Policy Development 
Panel (23/09/14) and 
Cabinet 
 
Meetings and 
discussions 

The Strategy  Cabinet 
07/10/14 
 

Councillor C J 
Lawton 
clawton@sholl
and.gov.uk 
 
Spalding 
Gypsy and 
Traveller Site 
 

To award the works contract. 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Assets and Property, 
Procurement 
Lincolnshire 
 
Portfolio Holder 
briefings – ongoing.   

As detailed in 
report 
 
Decision Notice 
 

Officer (Duncan Hall)  
31/10/14 
 
The above date is a guideline 
and it is likely that this decision 
will be taken by the end of July 
2014 or early August 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 26

mailto:mchandler@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:mchandler@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:clawton@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:clawton@sholland.gov.uk


 3 

Cabinet Membership 

Councillor G A Porter – Leader of the Council 
Councillor C N Worth – Deputy Leader of the Council (Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society) 
Councillor P S Przyszlak – Deputy Leader (Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic Services) 
Councillor M G Chandler (Portfolio Holder for Regulatory Services) 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder for Waste Management, Green Spaces and Operational Planning) 
Councillor H R Johnson (Portfolio Holder for Economic Development, Commercial Assets and Strategic Planning) 
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder for Housing Landlord) 
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, Performance and Business Development) 

  

 

 
 

 
If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact: 

 
Amanda Taylor, Member Services Officer, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 

Telephone: 01775 764837 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: member.services@sholland.gov.uk 
 

 

P
age 27

mailto:member.services@sholland.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Portfolio Holder for Internal Service, Performance and Business Development and 

the Executive Director Commissioning and Governance  
 

To:   Performance Monitoring Panel – 16 September 2014 

 
Author:  Kim Parks – Senior Performance Analyst 
 
Subject: Quarter 1 Cabinet Performance Report 
 
Purpose: To provide an update of delivery against our 2011-15 Corporate Plan for the Period 

1 April 2014 to 30 June 2014 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 

1) To note the content of the report. 
 
2) To agree the revised style. 

 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Following the creation of the bespoke data collection system over a period of months, 

introduction in full was available to all relevant Officers in December 2013.  This then 
allowed the agreed new report templates to be populated. 

 
1.2 The Cabinet report attached covers delivery against the Corporate Priorities and in addition 

Corporate Health indicators of interest to the public. 
 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To make recommendations for changes 
 
2.2 To do nothing 
 
2.3 The Portfolio Holder for Internal Service, Performance and Business Development will be 

considering what further improvements (if any) in performance management would be 
advantageous. 
 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Reporting against the delivery of our Corporate Priorities is good practice and part of the 

local government transparency agenda. 
 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 The new streamlined report will allow Scrutiny / Cabinet to focus attention on the delivery of 

our Corporate Priorities. 
 
 
 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8.



5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues have been considered and it is the opinion of the 

Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 Constitution and Legal Issues have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 

Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 Contracts implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 

there are no implications. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 Corporate Priorities implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 

Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 Crime and Disorder implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 

Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights implications have been considered and it is the 

opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 Financial implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 

there are no implications. 
 
5.8 Risk Management  
 
5.8.1 Risk implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that there 

are no implications. 
 
5.9 Staffing 
 
5.9.1 Staffing implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 

there are no implications. 
  
5.10 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.10.1 Stakeholder / Consultation / Timescale implications have been considered and it is the 

opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



5.11 Health and Wellbeing 
 
5.11.1 Health & wellbeing implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 

Author that there are no implications. 
  
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 No Wards / Communities are affected. 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 None 
 

 

Background papers:-None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
 
Name and Post: Kim Parks – Senior Performance Analyst 
Telephone Number: 01362 656866 
Email: kim.parks@breckland.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
 
Maxine O’Mahony – Strategic Director for Commissioning and Governance 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
 
Quarter 1 Cabinet Performance Report 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CABINET REPORT 

 
Quarter 1 2014/15

Page 33



 2

Foreword 
 
The quarterly performance report is a collection of our key indicator and projects that report in this quarter.  
Monitoring the performance of these indicators or projects helps us to endure we are on track to achieve 
the priorities we have set in our Corporate Plan, working together with our partners, to feed upwards as a 
‘golden thread’ to achieve the overall vision for the district. 
 
 
To find out more information on the way we manage or performance, please follow the link… Performance 
Management Framework 
 
Our Corporate Plan identified a vision and five key priorities for our district, to find out more information 
please follow the link… Corporate Plan 2011-2015 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
How to interpret this report 
 

R Performance has not been achieved or is below the anticipated outcome. 

A 
Performance is below level of expected performance but is within the tolerance of the anticipated 
outcome.  
Project is experiencing some minor issues but is still deliverable. 

G 
Performance is as expected and the anticipated outcome has been met or exceeded.  
Projects is on track for delivery within anticipated timescales and resource. 

 
Greyed out boxes: 
 

1 Previous reporting period only - this denotes that it is a new item so there is no previous data. 

2 
Previous reporting period and current reporting period - this denotes that no anticipated 
outcomes have been set for this indicator.  The reported outcomes help inform the shape and 
delivery of the service but the measure is not reporting on the 'performance' of the service. 

 
 
 

Page 34



 2 

 

SH 1 To Be a Forward Looking Council 

 
 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – House Building Project G G 
There are currently 2 schemes in progress - at Cowbit and 
Whaplode Drove. In addition, work is taking place to prepare the 
next sites for development 

Preparation of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) G G 
Work on the preparation of the CIL remains closely linked to 
progress on the preparation of the Local Plan. 

 
 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

To maintain occupancy levels above 85% of 
the industrial units portfolio 

84.16% A 85.00% 91.33% G 
Quarter 1 and year to date average monthly 
occupancy rate is 91.33%. 

 
 
SUMMARY: Performance against occupancy levels has improved for the 1st quarter compared to end of 2013/14 and is well above its anticipated outcome.  It 
has significantly improved against the same time last year of 82%. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 35



 3 

SH 2 To Enable our Communities 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 
Current 
Actual 

Comments 

Members Designated Budgets – Number of initiatives 
supported 

173 No. 27 No. 

To date 27 action forms have been processed, which have involved a total of  
31 district councillors from 17 district wards.  Approximately £23k has been 
spent on projects.  Quarter one projects included contributions towards the 
2012 Summer Challenge event, purchase of a defibrillator, provision of  
fencing, Spalding People’s Parade and Community Action projects etc. 

 
 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Average time to re-let SHDC property 
14.00 
Days 

G 17.00 Days 
17.67 
Days 

A 
Within target, although we are continuing to 
monitor the effect of asbestos removal during 
each void. 

Number of affordable homes built 61 No. R 21 No. 25 No. G 25 homes delivered. On target. 
 
 
Summary: The performance measure ‘Average time to re-let SHDC property’ is slightly higher that the anticipated outcome for this quarter, this is due to 
continual removal of asbestos from properties prior to re-letting which is having an impact on our turnaround times. 
 
The performance measure ‘Number of Affordable Homes’ at Quarter 1 is well above the anticipated outcome set for this period.  If the measure continues to 
deliver at this rate it will hit its smash its Quarter 3 anticipated outcome but not year end.  However; the outcome of this measure is out of the council’s control 
and is reliant on builders delivering what is expected within set parameters. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 36



 4 

 

SH 3 To Have Pride in South Holland 

 
 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Preparation of South East Lincolnshire Local Plan G G 

Following a review of the plan-preparation process governing the 
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan, the Joint Committee has 
approved a revised 'local development scheme' (LDS) which 
proposes the preparation of a single Local Plan document 
(instead of two separate DPDs). The revised timetable for the 
submission of the Local Plan to the Planning Inspectorate, set 
out in the LDS, is December 2015.   

 
 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

% of refuse that goes to recycling 30.40% A 32.00% 31.90%e G 

Recycling performance has improved over the 
last quarter, which has been attributed to the 
Green Bag Lottery, which has encourage 
more people to recycle. In order to maintain 
levels of high recycling performance, 
Recycling Officers will commence targeted 
campaigns in areas of low participation and 
high contamination. 

Kgs of residual waste collected 123.95 G 125.00 123.5 G 

The amount of residual waste collected has 
remained low this quarter. This is again 
attributed to the Green Bag Lottery where 
tonnage of materials collected for recycling 
has increased by 12% diverting waste from 
residual. In addition the kerbside textile trial 
has diverted a further 9 tonnes from residual 
collection. In order to sustain performance, 
further incentive schemes are planned in 
targeted areas and further expansion of the 

P
age 37



 5 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

textiles trail. 

Number of missed collections per 100,000 
households 

21.7 No. R 14 No. 29.10 No. R 

Due to the unexpected higher than expected 
outcome, the waste supervisor is to monitor 
the situation more intently. On initial 
investigation, it appears that the recycling 
crews are leaving more green bags that are 
presented with contamination than previously 
however this is without stickering the bags so 
the householders are aware why they have 
been left. The supervisor and recycling officers 
are working on crew training to minimise 
against contaminated bags being collected as 
missed. 

 
 
Summary: There has been a dip in the 'Number of missed collections per 1000 households' (refuse and recycling collections) due to crew error and not 
applying the correct stickers to bags notifying the householders reason for none collection.  Work is in progress to improve this measure with crew training 
being implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 38



 6 

SH 4 To Support our Local Economy 

 
 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Spalding Town Centre Regeneration G G 
Draft appraisal now received, next meeting currently being 
arranged 

Holbeach Town Centre Regeneration G G Still awaiting planning application from LCC 

S106 funding for Spalding Town Centre G G 
TCM recruitment still in progress. Meeting with Springfields now 
taken place and advertising campaign in planning stage. 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

% of building regulations responded to with 
21 days of receipt 

98.50% G 100% 92.81% A 

1 Application out of 98 received were not 
processed in the required time, this is an 
improvement. A new method of allocating 
work has been introduced and it seems to 
have helped. Last month we achieved 90.82% 
and last year we achieved 96.30% 

% of building consultancy applications 
responded to within 21 days 

88.50% A 90.00% 84.00% A 
An increase in workload and re-organisation of 
staff have resulted in the target not being 
achieved. 

 
Summary: Originally, the anticipated outcome for ‘% of building regulations responded to with 21 days of receipt’ was 90% for 2013/14.  Due to the 
excellent final outturn figure for the same year, the anticipated outcome increased to 100% for 2014/15.  Despite not meeting this for Quarter 1 it is envisaged 
that we are still on target for year end. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 39



 7 

SH 5 To Develop Stronger Communities 

 
 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Coordinated Response to Anti Social Behaviour 
 

A A 

Countywide consultations took place in May in relation to the new 
Policy Framework to incorporate the changes in legislation 
through the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.  
South Holland District Council has fed into this and is compiling 
an action plan to ensure that it can react effectively to the 
changes. A date is still to be set for County Wide training. 

CCTV A A 

Contractors are working on the final specifications for the 
infrastructure installation.  They have revisited locations and a 
final report of the detailed installation will be received for our 
consideration.  This is taking longer than hoped due to the nature 
of the area, the distances covered and the technology available 
to us.  They are working to ensure the best value & quality 
service will be provided. This will be  resolved soon once the 
technical issues are overcome. 

South Holland Centre – Developing young people’s engagement 
with LOV arts venues 

G G 

The LOV Young Peoples Project continues on track with good 
reports from both Paul Hamlyn Foundation and the Arts Council.  
LOV are now applying for continuation funding from 2015, and 
have also been encouraged to apply to the Esmee Fairburn 
Foundation.  Meanwhile the Youth Takeover group based at SH 
Centre are planning their 3rd Music in the Market Place event in 
August 2014, and will also be involved in a project to work with 
an orchestra, the London Sinfonia, in the Autumn.  The Centre is 
also hoping to work with Highly Sprung Theatre on a  schools 
project in Spring 2015 as part of the LOV YP Project. 

Health Initiatives A G 
Health Programmes which include; Walking for Health, Exercise 
Referral, Fit Kids and Kitchen Garden Project are all on track. Q1 
monitoring reports are due by 1st August. 

Kitchen Garden project G G 

2 new community gardens introduced at St Pauls Primary School 
and Holbeach (in partnership with In Bloom) engaging with 
approximately 50 volunteers. Total = 11 community gardens. 8 x 
6 week cooking courses ran; 2 x open community courses, 3 x 

P
age 40



 8 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

targeted courses with 3 youth centres, 1 x St Pauls Primary 
School,  2 x Pre School Learning Alliance (Donington and Sutton 
Bridge). 5 community awareness events have been held; one 
session as part of the Fit Kids programme, taster session at 
Holbeach Children’s Centre, Spalding Children’s Centre Chat n 
Chill group, Peele College and Holbeach Food Festival. 
Showcasing healthy wraps and crudites and teaching basic food 
hygiene and preparing a healthier Italian three-course meal. 
Engaged with around 200 people. No issues with project 
delivery. 

Orchestras Live Partnership Project. G G 

Working in partnership with Orchestras Live, the South Holland 
Centre's Youth Takeover Group and young musicians from 
across the district will have the opportunity to programme an 
Orchestral Concert performed by City Of London Sinfonia. The 
young people will choose a piece of music to be specially 
arranged for the orchestra and may even perform with them. 
Initial planning meetings have taken place. Planning is on track 
and there are no resource or delivery issues with this project. 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 
Current 
Actual 

Comments 

Net additional dwelling stock (including demolitions and 
conversions) 

254 No. 57 No. 
The net amount of 57 for the period April - June includes 6 conversions 
and one demolition. There is no common theme of the conversions. 

House building completions - % that are affordable 
homes 

24.40% 43.00% 
Year to date (April - June) there were 25 affordable housing completions 
out of the 57 net additional dwelling stock completions. This equated to 
43% which is above the affordable housing target of 33.3%. 

Anti-social behaviour – number of cases referred to 
ASB Officer 

46 No. 14 No. 
Alongside the 14 cases that have been dealt with year to date, 29 first 
level warnings have been issued and 1 Unacceptable Behaviour Warning. 

Anti-social behaviour – number of cases resolved by 
the council’s ASB officer within 3 months 

26 No. 7 No. 

A higher proportion of cases are closed within the first three months. This 
is often achieved through working closely with agencies such as Police 
and Education Providers. Victims are contacted throughout their case to 
ensure they are aware of action being taken and are fully supported. 

Overall participation in cultural activity 
490,505.00 

No. 
110,294.00 

No. 

Participation in cultural activity has been good over this period.  
Attendance at the Castle Sports Centre is above target and has seen an 
increase in classes. The swimming pool has seen a reduction in usage 
due to works to the flooring. Activate days, Geest Gallery Exhibitions and 

P
age 41



 9 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 
Current 
Actual 

Comments 

Friends of Ayscoughfee concerts has led to almost double participation in 
arts and culture activities compared to this quarter last year.  There has 
been a lively Spring offer at the South Holland Centre including the Lego 
movie, popular youth theatre community hire and a sell out live show. 
Visitors have attended popular events at Ayscoughfee Hall Museum and 
visitor numbers are comparable to last year. 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Spend on community grants £179,895.50 R £34,712.50 £50,647.50 G 

First quarter payments have been made to 
SHCABX, LCVS, and South Holland 
Voluntary Car Scheme as satisfactory 2013-
14 monitoring information has been 
received. The internal transfer of SHCABx 
rent and service charge and the contribution 
to CPRE Best Kept Village competition have 
both been made earlier than anticipated. 
Therefore spend is higher than anticipated 
in this quarter. Budgets are being spent in 
line with those approved at Full Council. 

 
 
Summary: Spend on Community Grants for quarter 1 has easily reached its anticipated outcome due to earlier than expected requests for grants.  However; 
budget spend is in line with that approved at Full Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 42



 10 

Corporate Health 

 
 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 
Current 
Actual 

Comments 

Number of Planning enforcement actions taken 21 No. 1 No. 
1 PCN served this quarter compared to 2 Enforcement Notices & 1 PCN in 
last quarter of 2013/14. 

Council Tax in year collection rate. 97.93% 30.43% 

Actual collection rate stands at 30.43% which compares with a 30.22% 
target for this stage. We are currently 0.21% up on the same period last 
year and 0.18% ahead of the JUN 12 target.  (NOTE: Revised Council 
Tax Support scheme this year now requires a 25% minimum contribution 
which is up from 8.5% in 2013/14) 

 
 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

To carry out a programme of inspections 
for licensed premises within the district 
based on a 10% sample per annum 

24.15% R 25.00% 8.77% G 

We have completed a number of 
inspections following complaints received. 
Proactive inspections are not being carried 
out at present.  

To carry out a programme of inspections 
for taxis (private Hire and Hackney 
Carriage) within the district based on a 
10% sample per annum 

119.57% G 25.00% 56.96% G 
Nine taxi inspections have been completed 
this quarter 

% of households where the council has 
acted to prevent homelessness 

30.60% G 20.00% 24% G 
The average for April and May was 24%, 
which is above target. June figures still not 
available due to data lag.  

% of rent collected against rent charged 95.71% A 91.3% 92.15% G 

Officers continue to monitor accounts 
closely: liaising with HB, identifying cases 
for DHP, offering tenancy support, referring 
to CAB for advice. 

% of Major planning applications 
determined within 13 weeks 

35.48% R 60.00% 44.44% R 

9 major applications determined in YTD 
with 4 in time.  Affected by need to 
negotiate on major schemes, completion of 
S106 agreements and staffing situation. 

% of Planning applications approved 91.33% A 92.00% 90.00% A 153 of the 170 applications determined 

P
age 43



 11 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

were approved with 17 refused 

% of Planning applications determined 
(within statutory time periods) 

63.24% A 70.0% 52.1% A 
Significantly below profile, due to number 
and nature of applications coupled with 
staffing situation. 

% of benefit paid correctly 99.51% G 99.00% 99.34% G 

The net value of errors is still quite small, 
with 99.34% accuracy compared to 99.0% 
target. Work is being done around 
enhancing our training and quality 
assurance function to maintain and improve 
performance in this area.  The small 
volume of claims sampled in first few 
months of the year meant that we started 
the year below target but as anticipated 
that returned to within target by the end of 
the first quarter as more cases were 
sampled.  

Number of successful Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax Benefit sanctions and 
prosecutions per 1,000 caseload (by 
CPBS) 

4.59 No. G 0.87 No. 1.82 No. G 

The actual average net caseload at 30 
June 2014 is 7,702 for SHDC. At the end of 
the first quarter sanction targets have been 
exceeded with actual figures of 1.82 
compared with 0.87 target 

Non-Domestic rates in year collections 
rate 

98.86% G 31.50% 32.28% G 
32.28% collection rate compared with a 
target of 31.5% for this stage of the year. 

 
Summary: The performance measures '% of Major Planning Applications determined with 13 weeks', ‘% of Planning applications approved’ and ‘% of 
Planning applications determined (within statutory time periods)’ have all fallen short of their anticipated outcomes for Quarter 1.   
 Major planning applications has exceeded where it was for the end of 2013/14 but fallen short of where it predicted to be for Qtr 1 this is due to 

negotiations of S106 agreements.   
 Planning applications approved albeit 2% below the Qtr 1 predicted, the service still dealt with a large number of applications during this period with only 

17 refusals.  
 Planning applications determined fell well short of prediction; this is mainly due to nature of the application. 

 
 

P
age 44



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Vicky Thomson – Democratic Services and Legal Manager 
 
To:    Performance Monitoring Panel – 16 September 2014  
 
(Author:  Christine Morgan – Member Services Officer) 
 
Subject: Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme  
 
Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel  
 

 
Recommendation:  
 
That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for 
discussion. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Background 
 
1.1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel 

for inclusion on its work programme. 
 
1.2 Issues 
 
1.2.1 Appendix 1 sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 

consideration.  These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are 
being referred to the Panel from Officers or Cabinet.  This appendix will be updated 
as new items are identified. 

 
1.2.2 Appendix 2 sets out the Task Groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The 

table shows: 
 

• The name of the Task Group 

• What it wants to achieve 

• Key dates 

• Membership of the Task Group 

• When the Task Group will be reporting back to the Panel 
 
1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a 

standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and 
provide the opportunity for Councillors to monitor the progress of its work programme. 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45

Agenda Item 9.



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To allow Members to feed into the Panel’s Calendar of Work Programme items and 

the Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to 
date. 
 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS  
 
4.1 The Calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide 

Members with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar 
items and proposed Task Groups within the Work Programme are included within the 
appendices. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 There are no direct Carbon Footprint and Environmental Issue implications 

associated with this report.  As individual items are progressed through the work 
programme, their Carbon Footprint and Environmental Issue implications will be 
assessed.   

 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 There are no direct Constitution and Legal implications associated with this report.  

As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Constitution 
and Legal implications will be assessed. 

 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 There are no direct Contract implications associated with this report.  As individual 

items are progressed through the work programme, their Contract implications will be 
assessed. 

 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, Councillors consider the 

suitability of the subject, taking into account such considerations as whether the issue 
is strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.  One 
of the indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how 
strongly the topic links to the Council’s key aims and priorities.  

 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 There are no direct Crime and Disorder implications associated with this report.  As 

individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Crime and 
Disorder implications will be assessed. 

 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 There are no direct Equality and Diversity and Human Rights implications associated 

with this report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, 
their Equality and Diversity and Human Rights implications will be assessed. 

 
 

Page 46



5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 There are no direct Financial implications associated with this report. As individual 

items are progressed through the work programme, their Financial implications will be 
assessed. 

 
5.8 Risk Management  
 
5.8.1 There are no direct Risk Management implications associated with this report.  As 

individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Risk Management 
implications will be assessed. 

 
5.9 Staffing 
 
5.9.1 There are no direct Staffing implications associated with this report.  As individual 

items are progressed through the work programme, their Staffing implications will be 
assessed. 

  
5.10 Stakeholders / Consultation  / Timescales 
 
5.10.1 There are no direct Stakeholder/Consultation/Timescale implications associated with 

this report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their 
implications will be assessed. 

 
5.11 Health and Wellbeing 
 
5.11.1 There are no Health and Wellbeing implications associated with this report.  As 

individual items are progressed through the work programme, their implications will 
be assessed. 

 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 When a task group is considered for inclusion on the Panel’s Work Programme, it is 

assessed against criteria covering Importance, Impact and Value for Money.  The 
‘Impact’ and ‘Value for Money’ score indicators consider how strongly the issue will 
affect a ward(s), customer group(s) or service area(s).  Only issues scoring highly will 
be included on the Work Programme. 

 
7.0 ACRONYMS 
 
7.1 None. 

Background papers:- None 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Christine Morgan (Member Services Officer) 
Telephone Number: 01775 764454 
Email:    cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting:  
Lynn Eldred (Principal Member Services Officer) 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
 
Appendix 1 – Work Programme Calendar 
Appendix 2 – Task Group Work Programme 2014/15 

Page 47



                                                                                                                               
APPENDIX 1 

 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 
 

 
Date of Meeting 

 
Agenda items 

 

16 September 2014 • Annual Inspection of Planning Files – Agree members to 
undertake and potential dates  

• Quarter 1 Performance Report  

25 November 2014 • Attendance by the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Lincolnshire, to answer questions from the Panel.  The Portfolio 
Holder for Localism, Economic Development and Big Society and 
the Community Development Team Leader also to attend.  
Councillor P Przyszlak to attend in his capacity as SHDC’s 
representative on the Police and Crime Commissioner Panel, 
should he have a contribution to make. 

• Crime and Disorder  - Update report on community safety and 
how it is being delivered through the various tiers of Groups and 
Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly formed 
Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six months by 
the Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society) 

• Annual Inspection of Planning Files – Update report to Panel 
advising findings following inspection 

• Quarter 2 Performance Report  

27 January 2015 • Attendance by Neil Rhodes, Chief Constable, Lincolnshire Police, 
to answer questions on issues of crime and disorder. 

• Update on progress of the restructure of the CSU (from 
recommendations of reformed CSU Task Group), specifically on 
the asset management software package – Darren Spillett 

• Update to members’ questions and concerns regarding their IT 
provision (updates received 29 January 2013, 26 March 2013, 24 
July, 15 October and 3 December 2013 and 24 June 2014). 

• Biennial Review of Implemented Planning Decisions – To 
consider the following in respect of the tour in May/June 2014: a) 
Members to decide if there were sufficient properties to visit; b) 
Members to provide suggestions of properties to visit; and c) 
Members to decide how the tour should be taken and how 
properties should be reviewed and scored. Panel to decide if item 
should be considered as part of scheduled meeting or as an 
additional pre-meeting. 

• Quarter 3 Performance Report 

7 April 2015 •   

 

�ote: Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and PDP have requested 

that a special Joint Meeting will be held to discuss the setting up of the South Holland 

Building Consultancy prior to it being considered by Cabinet (date to be confirmed). 

  

Page 48



 

APPENDIX 2 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2014/2015 
 

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership 
of Task Group 

Proposed date 
of report to 
Panel 

Effectiveness of CCTV Task 
Group 

Purpose of Review – To establish the current 
situation with regard to CCTV and make 
recommendations to Cabinet on the way 
forward. 
 
Terms of Reference – To examine the 
effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service and 
prospects for future provision. 
 
Panel received update on 8 April 2014 from 
the Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big 
Society on the position regarding CCTV.  
Performance information will be available on 
the new system in the future, once it 
becomes operational.  The Task Group will 
remain in operation to scrutinise 
performance and will start to do this once 
the information becomes available. 

6 November 
2012  

21 November 
2012  

B Alcock 
M Howard 
R M Rudkin 
D J Wilkinson 
(Chairman) 

Interim report 
to PMP 29 
January 2013  
 
 

Leisure Task Group 
 
 
Joint Task Group 
incorporating members from 
the Performance Monitoring 
and Policy Development 
Panels.  
 

• What did South Holland as a District 
really want? What form would this take 
i.e. local government provision, joint 
provision with private enterprise or sole 
private enterprise provision? 

• What work was being undertaken by 
other areas of the Council?  

• What contracts were currently in place?  

• Who was writing the contracts that were 
currently in place with providers? Could a 

30 May 
2012 

21 January 
2014 

G R Aley 
(Chairman) 
D Ashby 
A Casson 
G K Dark 
R Perkins 
S Wilkinson 
S Slade 
E Sneath 
 

Interim report 
presented to 
joint 
PMP/PDP – 
19 August 
2014  
To Cabinet 7 
October 2014 

P
age 49



 

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership 
of Task Group 

Proposed date 
of report to 
Panel 

legal perspective be sought on the quality 
of the contract?  

• What were the actual costs of the 
facilities?  

• Why did people not use the facilities?  

• What were the satisfaction levels of 
current users?  

• What local groups used the facilities?  

• What did employers within the area want?  

• What facilities were available in 
Breckland and East Lindsey?  

• Were there any funding streams available 
to help with Leisure provision costs?  

 

Lead Officer: 
Phil Adams 

To review the development of 
sporting activities across the 
district (in light of the 
possibility of new leisure 
provision in the future). 

June/September 2014??? – Leisure Task 
Group to report to PMP.  If this item falls 
within the remit of the Task Group, remove 
this from the Work Programme. 

31 May 
2011 

   

Sir Halley Stewart Field Task 
Group 
 
Joint Task Group 
incorporating members from 
the Performance Monitoring 
and Policy Development 
Panels.  
 

Outline Purpose of Review2 
 
To look into whether it was possible for the 
Council to extend the use of the Sir Halley 
Stewart Playing Field to wider public access, 
within the scope of the deeds. 
 
2..based on the following Terms of 
Reference: 
 

• To establish the situation with regard to 
finances in relation to the Sir Halley 

11 
December 
2013 

12 February 
2014  

G R Aley 
P E Coupland 
G K Dark 
(Chairman) 
A Harrison 
R Perkins 
E Sneath 
 
 

To Council  
(as requested) 
19 November 
2014  

P
age 50



 

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership 
of Task Group 

Proposed date 
of report to 
Panel 

Stewart Playing Field; 

• To establish what activities could be 
undertaken at the Sir Halley Stewart 
Playing Field, and what they would cost; 

• To establish how the community could be 
included in a wider usage of the Sir 
Halley Stewart Playing Field 

• To consider the promotion of the booking 
and accessibility of the Sir Halley Stewart 
Playing Field in order to ensure that the 
Public Benefit test was met 

Scrutiny of the Authority’s 
Emergency Plan 

To scrutinise the robustness of the 
Emergency Plan. 
 
To be considered when there is more 
capacity in the Work Programme to 
undertake a new Task Group. 

8 April 2014     

Corporate Communications 
Strategy 

On 31 May 2012, the Panel had expressed 
its interest in undertaking a piece of work on 
Communications, in particular communication 
and consultation by the County Council with 
the District and Parish Councils and 
communication by the District Council with 
Members. The Joint Communications Team 
Leader attended a meeting on 10 July 2012. 
The Assistant Director-Democratic Services 
provided a briefing on 15 October 2013, 
advised that there was a timeline for the 
Communications service review, a report 
would be available within the next few 
months, and a strategy would follow.  

31 May 
2012  

   

P
age 51



 

 
 
 
 

P
age 52



Document is Restricted

Page 53

Agenda Item 12.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2.a) Performance Monitoring Panel
	2.b) Special Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel
	2.c) Special Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel
	7. Key Decision Plan
	The Key Decision Plan shows all key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

	8. Quarter 1 Cabinet Performance Report
	Quarter 1 Performance Report Appendix

	9. Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme
	12. Special Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel

